
 

MIDDLETOWN PLANNING COMMISSION 

31 West Main Street 

Middletown, Maryland 

 

                                                                 

 

Regular Meeting         September 16, 2013 

 

The regular meeting of the Middletown Planning Commission took place on Monday, September 16, 2013 at 7:00 

p.m. at the Middletown Municipal Center, 31 West Main Street, Middletown, MD  21769.  Those present 

(quorum) were Commissioners Mark Carney (Chairman), David Lake (Vice-chairman), Chris Goodman (Ex-

Officio), Bob Miller, and Bob Smart.  Others present in official capacity:  Commissioners Rich Gallagher 

(Alternate) and Ron Forrester (Temp. Alternate), Bruce Carbaugh (Director of Public Works), Cindy Unangst 

(Staff Planner), and Annette Alberghini (Recording Secretary).  Others present:  Chris Miller, Miller Commercial 

Properties L.L.C., Ann Miller, Miller Commercial Properties L.L.C. and Seth Harry, Miller Properties L.L.C.. 

 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 

 

II. Regular Meeting Minutes of August 19, 2013 – deferred approval to the October planning commission 

meeting.   

 

III. PLANS 

 

 Miller Property Revised Concept Plan – Cindy reviewed the changes to the new revised plans which 

differed from the original plan approved in September 2010.  The changes were in regards to parking and storm 

water management.  Cindy logged on to the website which showed the most current 3D version of the plan.  Chris 

Miller (Miller Properties, Inc.) then reviewed this version of the plan with the Commission.  Other issues 

discussed: 

 

 Property Entrance:  Commission Chairman Carney questioned the proposed two way entrance 

on the west side of the property and its access to the parking lot regarding if the width was wide 

enough.  Mr. Miller replied that State Highway requires access to the property to be 26 feet wide.  

He also stated that the exit on to Green Street was not to be taken away, but they are looking for 

limited access to prohibit drivers from using the parking lot as a short cut.  The Green Street 

access could be open as needed.  

 Signage and Landscaping on East Side of Property:  Questions were also raised regarding 

signage and landscaping on the east side of the property, specifically, line of sight with respect to 

exiting the property.   

 Parking:  Discussion ensued regarding the future success of the property. What would they do if 

they needed more parking?  Currently there is no parking along 40A.  It was noted that there is 

parking further down on Broad Street.  Chairman Carney suggested that the property owners 

investigate with Frederick County Public Schools about using the school parking lot for overflow 

parking during non-school hours.  Commissioner Lake suggested looking at Green Street as well.  

Cindy will review parking considerations that were identified a few years ago regarding shared 

parking for the property.  Commissioner Smart questioned the differing sizes of the parking 

spaces in the revised plans that do not meet the town parking regulations.  Bruce Carbaugh said 

that wider aisles beside the shorter parking spaces in the revised plan would qualify for the same 

square footage.    

 Solar Panels:  Cindy remarked that the solar panels are shown on the roof of the 3D plan.  Mr. 

Miller said it would be a 90 KW array.   

 Facility Operator, Tenants & hours:  Mr. Miller stated that they were still looking for a facility 

operator, that there would be up to 7 tenants for the market spaces, and that the hours had yet to 

be defined.  They are thinking 10am-7pm or 10am-9pm.   



 

 

Mr. Miller stated they are expecting permit plans in December 2013 and digging to commence January or 

February of 2014. Commission Member Lake then remarked to the property owners that this is a concept plan and 

they now know the comments from the Planning Commission regarding site plan approval. 

 

Action:  No action required. 

 

 

IV. ZONING 

 

 Middletown Park Annexation - Chairman Carney opened discussion on the park annexation by stating 

that Middletown Community Park is within town limits, is an open space park within an area zoned open space.  

Cindy stated that the park is within the town’s growth area so it is appropriate to annex and that if the town 

decided to annex the park that the Frederick County Commissioners are in agreement.  

  

 Future Park Master Plan Changes:  Discussion arose concerning any future changes to the 

Park master plan and how the Town would be affected.  Alternate Commissioner Ron Forrester 

said that the town will have input in the comment process for changes to the master plan, but not 

for the approval process regarding any changes. 

 

Action:  Commissioner Smart motioned to approve the annexation of the Middletown Community Park into the 

town limits, seconded by Commissioner Miller. Motion carried (4-0-1, Commissioner Goodman abstained).  

Cindy remarked that the public hearing on this annexation is scheduled for December 5, 2013 and that all public 

notice requirements will be met. 

 

 Thompson Parking Lot Schedule – Cindy stated that everything is on course for this project to be 

completed by the end of October or November.  The contractor has been selected and the Engineer has no 

concerns that this project will not reach construction completion within the allotted time.   

 

 Completion Date:  Commissioner Lake asked if there was a completion date set.  Cindy stated 

that she had spoken with the Burgess and if the project is not completed by December 1, 2013, 

she will send a letter that it must be completed or else the Town will start fine enforcement 

proceedings.  Chairman Carney suggested that future projects be approved with specific 

completion timeframes/dates dependent upon start of construction. 

 

Action:  No action required. 

  

 Violations –  Cindy stated that the presence of Maggie’s Bake Shop signs have improved their Friday 

and Saturday business.  It was stated that businesses located on State Highway 17 need a permit for a sign on 

State Highway 17, but signs for businesses not located on 40A are not allowed because it is designated a scenic 

byway.  

  

V. MISCELLANEOUS 

  

iPads for Planning Commission Members – Chairman Carney is drafting a memo to the Burgess and 

Town Board requesting iPads for Commission Members.  He asked Commissioner Goodman to sign the letter if 

he is agreeable to the request.  Justification for the iPads includes being able to access the FTP site for all plan 

information for each project, which would decrease the number of plan copies required by businesses, as well as, 

recouping fees associated with each plan.  Commissioner Goodman researched costs and said that the 

approximate total cost for 6 iPads would be $3900.  Commissioner Goodman will meet with the Town 

Administrator to discuss this further.   

 



 

Joint Meeting with Town Board – Chairman Carney noted that there is a joint meeting with the Town 

Board on October 7, 2013. 

     

VI. ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENTS – None   

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:47pm. 

 

     Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

      Annette Alberghini 

      Receptionist 


